
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
OATH OF OFFICE CEREMONY 

Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. OATH OF OFFICE CEREMONY 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                        Hon. Jimmy Davis 
 
3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 
4. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                         November 15, 2022, December 6, 2022   

                                   minutes not received December 20, 2022                             
 

 
6. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
 
7. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    
    a. 2022-056: An Ordinance to restrict the use of certain real property owned by Anderson County, South 

Carolina, to public outdoor recreational use; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE 
MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, January 3, 2023 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

8. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:   
 

    a. 2022-58 An ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 
park (2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
9. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:     

 
  a. 2023-001: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as 

adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49 acres 
from C-2 (Highway Commercial District) to R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, 
identified as 2647 Anderson Hwy Williamston in the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 
14259 page 187. The parcel is further identified as TMS #197-00-05-018. [District 7]  

     (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
b. 2023-002: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July  

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.76 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) to R-MHP (Residential Manufactured Home Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as 
110 Smith Motors Rd in the Bowling Green Precinct shown in Deed Book 14748 page 7.  The parcel is further 
identified as TMS #173-00-06-005. [District 7] (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes)                                                                                                              

10. RESOLUTIONS:  None  
 
11. APPROVAL OF A SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY AND UNITED   

WAY OF ANDERSON 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
12. ANDERSON COUNTY ATAX COMMITTEE REQUESTS & RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 
       
 
13. REQUEST BY COUNCIL:  
      a. UNCF/Event-All Districts 
 
 
14. CITIZENS COMMENTS                           Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
15. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

NOVEMBER 15, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 TOMMY DUNN:   ...
2 presentation meeting of November 15 of Anderson County
3 Council.  Like to welcome each and every one of y’all
4 here tonight.  Thank y’all for coming.
5 First order of business will be a resolution R (a),
6 a resolution 2022-064 from Honorable Cindy Wilson.  Ms.
7 Wilson.
8 CINDY WILSON: Thank you,
9 Mr. Chairman.  This is a resolution to congratulate the
10 Anderson University Mens Golf Team upon being named the
11 Consensus Top Team in the national, and other matters
12 related thereto.
13 Whereas, the mission and philosophy of Anderson
14 University athletics are to support the overall mission
15 of the University by providing a competitive
16 intercollegiate athletic program that attracts,
17 nurtures, and graduates student-athletes who, under the
18 guidance of a quality staff, represent Anderson
19 University with character and integrity while pursuing
20 excellence in their respective sports; and
21 Whereas, the Anderson University men’s golf team
22 opened its season this year with a school-record four
23 straight tournament championships and has been ranked
24 the #1 team in the nation in both the Golfstat and
25 Bushnell/Golfweek Coaches polls; and
26 Whereas, this top-ranking eclipses the highest
27 ranking that Anderson University men’s golf had
28 achieved in any previous year, which was #25 in March
29 2021.
30 Therefore, be it resolved that, in a meeting duly
31 assembled this 15th day of November 2022, the Anderson
32 County Council hereby congratulates the Anderson
33 University’s men’s golf team on its extraordinary
34 achievements, thanks them for representing our
35 community so well on the national stage and wishes them
36 the best of luck now and in the future.
37 Resolved in meeting duly assembled this 15th day of
38 November, 2022. 
39 May I put that in the form of a motion?
40 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.
42 Second by Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?
43 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright,
45 Councilman Wright.
46 JOHN WRIGHT:  I just want to
47 say I had the opportunity to see a lot of these young
48 men in action a few weeks ago at one of their
49 tournaments.  And just really appreciate what you guys
50 are doing.  And Coach Neal, Coach Moore, I know you



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 guys invest a lot of time into these guys and into the
2 teams over there.  And just really appreciate what
3 y’all are doing for Anderson University.  It’s making a
4 difference in Anderson County.  And we really very much
5 appreciate it.  So thank you.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
7 Anyone else?  I’d just like to concur.  I want to
8 congratulate y’all.  Appreciate what all y’all have
9 done in representing the university well and also
10 Anderson County.  Thank y’all very, very much.  
11 All in favor of the motion show of hands. All
12 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously. 
14 Ms. Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:    If we may
16 have our young men and their coaches and our Council
17 down front.
18 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
19 APPLAUSE
20 TOMMY DUNN:  This will
21 conclude this part of our meeting.  We’ll reconvene
22 back here at 6:30 to start our regular Council meeting.
23
24 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:04 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

NOVEMBER 15, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting to order of November 15th.  I’d like to welcome
4 each and every one of y’all here tonight and for taking
5 part in the Anderson County local government.
6 At this time, the first order of business, before
7 pledge of allegiance, a little housekeeping.  Mr. Glenn
8 Davis will not -- Councilman Davis won’t be here
9 tonight.  He’s having some medical treatments.  Nothing
10 serious he said, but he’ll be unable to attend.  And
11 Mr. Jimmy Davis will not be here tonight.  He had a
12 work emergency and cannot be here.
13 I’d also like to keep our county attorney, Mr. Leon
14 Harmon, in our thoughts and prayers as he has recovery. 
15 We hope he has a good, healthy, strong, speedy
16 recovery.
17 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.
19 CINDY WILSON:  May we add two
20 other names for prayers and consideration?  One is
21 David Draisen and he served on our school board for
22 many years and did a lot of work in the community.  And
23 also Mr. Butch Kennedy, who literally brought the
24 Equine Department in to Clemson University and did so
25 much on the trails around the state.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll keep
27 those two families, the Kennedy family and the Draisen
28 family, in our thoughts and prayers as they lost their
29 loved ones this past week.
30 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Ray Graham
31 if he’ll lead us in the invocation and Pledge of
32 Allegiance, if we’ll rise, please.
33 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY RAY GRAHAM
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
35 Councilman Graham.  As we move on, we do not have any
36 approval of minutes tonight.  We have not received
37 those copies.  
38 We’re moving on now to item number 4, citizens
39 comments.  As Mr. Thayer, our acting attorney tonight,
40 calls your name, the first go-around is on agenda items
41 only.  You have three minutes.  Please address the
42 chair, please.
43 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chair, the
44 first speaker is Charlene Speltz.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.
46 CHARLENE SPELTZ:  Good evening,
47 ladies and gentlemen, I’m Charlene Speltz from
48 Piedmont, South Carolina, 103 Dogwood Court.  And we
49 are on the agenda tonight under item 10, requesting
50 funding for our Piedmont -- for our History Society --



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 excuse me.  And we are asking for money to help us with
2 our internet this year, as we have in the past, and
3 also for your assistance in purchasing a map cabinet.  
4 And what we are doing in our Preservation Society
5 in Piedmont, we are in the process -- we have built --
6 we have purchased a new building and we’re under the
7 process of renovating and restoring this building to
8 the tune of about $400,000.00.  And we’re working very
9 diligently with our grants.
10 We appreciate so much all that Anderson County has
11 done for us.  And want to invite you to come see us in
12 Piedmont.  If you’ve not been there, we have a lot of
13 things going on.  And I’m sure Rusty would tell you a
14 lot of things that we’re doing in Piedmont.
15 Again, Anderson County, we appreciate so much what
16 you have done for us in Piedmont.  And thank you.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
18 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you.
19 CHARLENE SPELTZ:  Well, we have a
20 bridge that has lights on it now.  We have a bridge
21 that have lights on it and we’re having Christmas
22 lights in Piedmont for the first time in about twelve
23 years.  We started out, we were going to buy 20.  We
24 figured we could put up 20 lights.  By six weeks into
25 that, we had 55 lights and a 25 foot Christmas tree. 
26 That is the kind of people that we have in Piedmont
27 that you serve.  And it was all individuals.  It was
28 not big corporations.  So please come to Piedmont.  On
29 November 25 at 5:00 we’re going to light that 25 foot
30 tree up.  Thank you so much.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
32 Mr. Thayer.
33 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
34 the second speaker is Carolyn Reeves.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Ms.
36 Reeves.
37 CAROLYN REEVES:  ... Piedmont
38 Historical Preservation Society and have been working
39 with Charlene and Ann Peyton from the very start. 
40 We’re very excited about our house and things that
41 we’re doing with everything.  So everybody, as Charlene
42 says, is working for this.  I have been an Anderson
43 County resident all my life.  In fact, live probably an
44 eighth of a mile from where I grew up.  Graduated from
45 Wren High School.  So we’re excited and we appreciate
46 your help.  And we hope you will continue to help us.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
48 Mr. Thayer.
49 JORDAN THAYER:  That’s all
50 that’s signed up, Mr. Chairman.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
2 Appreciate it.
3 We’re going to move on now to item number 5(a), 
4 2022-048, an Ordinance authorizing an infrastructure
5 financing agreement on behalf of Tetramer Technologies
6 LLC and Hoobastank Industries LLC, for a new project
7 (Tetramer 2) to be located in an already existing
8 jointly owned and operated industrial/business park in
9 conjunction with Greenville County (Tetramet MCIP), and
10 other matters related thereto.
11 Mr. Nelson, do you want to talk about this.  This
12 is third reading.
13 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, Mr.
14 Chairman.  This is a company that started developing in
15 Anderson approximately ten years ago.  But it’s
16 research and development.  All these, the research and
17 development come from intellectual properties from
18 Clemson University, and most of these are Clemson
19 University Ph.D.s that work in this facility.  There
20 are over 28 employees.  Average salary 2.8 million
21 dollars annual salary.  And they’re the ones who
22 developed an additive for chocolate that reduces the
23 fat content by 50 percent.  And so they have great --
24 there are a lot of chocolate companies that are all
25 over them about the process.  And great little company;
26 great opportunity.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
28 there will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
29 speak to this matter, please step forward, address the
30 chair, and state your name and district for the record,
31 please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the
32 public hearing will be closed. 
33 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
34 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
35 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
37 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
38 discussion.  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
39 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
40 the motion carries unanimously. 
41 We’re going to move on to item number 5(b),
42 2022-051, an Ordinance to approve a lease agreement
43 between Anderson County, South Carolina, and Equinox
44 Mill Affordable, LP for a parcel of real property
45 identified as Tax Map parcel 123-11-02-026 which is
46 part of the former Equinox Mill site located at 200
47 Jackson Street, Anderson, South Carolina; and other
48 matters related thereto.
49 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
50 speak to this matter, step forward and state your name



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 and district and address the chair, please.  Anyone at
2 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
3 be closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
4 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
7 Wilson; second by John Wright.  Any discussion?  All in
8 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
9 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
10 We’re going to move on to item number 5(c), 
11 2022-053, an Ordinance to approve the grant of a fiber
12 company right of way easement to WC Fiber, LLC on
13 property owned by Anderson County, South Carolina
14 located at 399 Simmons Ford Road, Townville, South
15 Carolina (TMS No. 016-00-01-003); and other matters
16 related thereto.
17 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
18 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
19 your name and district and address the chair, please. 
20 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
21 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move
22 this forward?
23 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
24 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
26 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Seeing
27 and hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of
28 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously. 
30 Moving on to item number 6(a), second readings,
31 6(a), 2022-054, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for
32 the development of a joint county industrial and
33 business park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville
34 Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters
35 related thereto.
36 Mr. Nelson, have you got any comments on this?
37 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, Mr.
38 Chairman.  This is an add of a parcel of property to
39 the Anderson/Greenville Multi-County Industrial Park. 
40 They’re adding almost 49 acres to Willimon Industrial
41 Park for future projects.  This will allow industries
42 that will locate there to obtain state benefits and
43 incentives.  And there’s a reciprocal agreement with
44 Greenville for Anderson County to receive the same kind
45 of benefits for the projects that we put in the park.
46 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
48 Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?  
49 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 Wilson; second Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion.  Hearing
2 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
3 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
4 unanimously.  
5 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you for
6 your support.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
8 Appreciate you and your team.
9 Ordinance 7(a), first reading, 2022-055, an
10 Ordinance to approve the grant of a right-of-way
11 easement to Duke Energy Carolinas LLC, on real property
12 owned by Anderson County, South Carolina; and other
13 matters related thereto.
14 Mr. Burns, will you just highlight this right
15 quick?
16 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep.  Do we
18 have a motion to move this forward?
19 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
20 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. John
22 Wright; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
23 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
24 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
25 We’re going to move on to item number 8(a), change
26 orders/bid approvals.  This will be bid #23-013,
27 Anderson Sports and Entertainment Center, Walkway
28 Improvement.  Mr. Burns.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
30 TOMMY DUNN:   We ain’t
31 talking but about a few feet.  Can’t be that much; is
32 it?  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
33 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
34 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
36 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
37 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
38 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
39 We’re going to move on now to item number 9,
40 appointments.  District 2 has an appointment of Mr.
41 Jimmy Johnson on the Museum Advisory Committee.  Y’all
42 have a copy of his application.  I’d like to put that
43 in the form of a motion.
44 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
45 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
46 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
48 Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
49 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
50 carries unanimously.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 Is there anyone else have any appointments I’m not
2 aware of?  
3 Okay.  Moving on now to item number 10, requests by
4 council members.  We’ll start with Mr. Sanders.  Mr.
5 Sanders.
6 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
7 Chairman.  Councilman Jimmy Davis had called me and
8 asked that he take $3,000.00 from his rec account for
9 the Piedmont Historical Society.  And I put that in the
10 form of a motion, sir.
11 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
13 Mr. Sanders; second Mr. Wright.  Any discussion?  All
14 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
15 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
16 Mr. Sanders.
17 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  I
18 know that the Piedmont Historical Society only send in
19 for District 6, but out of my special rec account, I’d
20 like to appropriate $500.00 for them.  Put that in the
21 form of a motion, sir.
22 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
24 motion Mr. Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
25 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
26 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman, I
28 had the Anchored in His Grace Ministry that’s doing the
29 meeting at the Farmers Market on Christmas Day.  They
30 had an amount requested and I want -- I think
31 Councilman John Wright and I are going to try to meet
32 what they do, but I need to wait and see if anyone else
33 does so he and I will know how much to give.  Can you
34 come back to me?
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah.
36 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on now
38 to Councilman Graham.
39 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
40 Chairman.  I’d like to make a motion to allocate
41 $5,000.00 to Iva Recreational Program.  I bring this in
42 the form of a motion.
43 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
45 Graham; second Mr. Wright.  Any discussion?  All in
46 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
47 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
48 Anything else, Mr. Graham?
49 RAY GRAHAM:  That’ll be it.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
2 Chairman.  I would like to appropriate five hundred
3 dollars, as well, from District 1's special rec account
4 to the Piedmont Historical Preservation Society.  And
5 I’d like to put that in the form of a motion.
6 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
8 by Mr. Wright and second by Mr. Sanders.  Any
9 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
10 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
11 unanimously. 
12 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
13 Chairman.  And then on the Anchored in His Grace
14 Ministry, I’ll do -- I think Mr. Glenn Davis is going
15 to do something for that, as well, five hundred, so
16 I’ll go ahead and do $500.00, as well, from my District 
17 1 special rec account.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Have a
19 motion Mr. Wright.  Have a second?
20 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
23 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
24 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
25 carries unanimously. 
26 Anything else?
27 JOHN WRIGHT:  Nothing else,
28 Mr. Chairman.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
30 CINDY WILSON:  Unfortunately,
31 I’m close to broke.  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Out of
33 District 5's special appropriate account, I’d like to
34 appropriate $500.00 to Anchored in His Grace
35 Ministries.  Put that in the form of a motion.
36 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
39 Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
40 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
41 carries unanimously.
42 Moving on now to item -- moving on to Mr. Sanders. 
43 I’m sorry.
44 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir. 
45 I would like to appropriate $500.00 for Anchored in His
46 Grace Ministries.  Put that in the form of a motion.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Mr.
48 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
49 BRETT SANDERS:  I already did
50 Mr. Davis’s.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah.  All in
2 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
3 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
4 Mr. Burns, I haven’t talked to Mr. Davis about
5 that. Did he want to act on that tonight?
6 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Davis
7 wanted to pledge $500.00 to Anchored in His Grace
8 Ministries, which is done by Mr. Merriweather who was
9 an employee of ours in facilities.  He’s done ---
10 TOMMY DUNN:   I understand
11 there’s a lot of good things, but I just didn’t know --
12 Mr. Davis didn’t relay that to me, so I didn’t want to
13 spend nobody else’s money.
14 BRETT SANDERS:  I’m sorry.  I
15 thought you were talking about Jimmy Davis, not ---
16 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll put in
17 the form of a motion Mr. Glenn Davis, $500.00 out of
18 his special appropriations account to the Anchored in
19 His Grace Ministries.  Put that in the form of a
20 motion.
21 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
23 Sanders.  Any further discussion?  All in favor of the
24 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
25 motion carries unanimously.
26 Anything else?
27 We’re going to move on to item number 11,
28 Administrator’s report.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
30 time, Mr. Chairman.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on at
32 this time, we’ll go to citizens comments.  When Mr.
33 Thayer calls your name, you have three minutes.  Please
34 state your name and district for the record and address
35 the chair, please.
36 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
37 Tom Boehnlein.
38 TOM BOEHNLEIN:   I’m with Oasis
39 of Hope.  You folks gave me the opportunity to talk to
40 you last month and Ms. Wilson had some questions about
41 opioid use and how it’s affected foster care in South
42 Carolina.  And I wanted to give y’all that information,
43 but also want to give you some wins that Oasis Foster
44 Care has had.  You guys were respectful enough to give
45 me your time, and I wanted to give you some
46 celebrations that we had.
47 Ms. Wilson, as far as on a nationwide basis,
48 there’s about forty percent of kids in foster care that
49 have been affected either by drug use or opioid use. 
50 Unfortunately it’s not broken down, but on an



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 government basis exactly what narcotic was involved or
2 what abuse was involved other than drug or alcohol use. 
3 But as a general rule, we know from our agency at least
4 thirty-three percent of them are opioid or
5 methamphetamine.  
6 There’s about 8.7 million children across the
7 country that have been affected by opioid use; six
8 hundred and thirty-nine thousand parents, okay, that
9 are drug abusers.  
10 Mortality rates -- this is where it really affects
11 foster care.  The two biggest groups are -- the biggest
12 group is age 25 to 33, mortality rates for opioid use;
13 the second highest is 33 to 40.  Those are both child
14 rearing and child bearing years.  Okay?  So those kids
15 end up in foster care.  That’s how we’re affected by
16 foster care.
17 In Anderson County, Anderson County Coroner says
18 approximately two to three deaths per week due to
19 opioid use.  In 2017, drug overdose deaths was about 32
20 for Anderson County.  So we can end up anywhere between
21 50 and 75 for the year in Anderson County itself.
22 I wanted to give you guys a couple of big wins that
23 we’ve experienced recently.  Focus on the Family found
24 out about our organization.  They reached out to us. 
25 When a kid goes into foster care, they usually go to a
26 home or residence or wherever they end up with a
27 grocery bag of clothes, if that.  No identify.  No
28 possessions.  Nothing.  They contacted us and asked if
29 we could use some suitcases for the kids so they could
30 take them with them from house to house when they -- or
31 when they’re reunified.  We said we could use 50.  They
32 had about 500.  So we got 500 suitcases, 500 bibles,
33 500 age-appropriate toys to put in suitcases.  We’ll be
34 using them for our kids and other kids across the state
35 for other agencies.
36 I mentioned to you that we had recently opened a
37 clinic in Piedmont.  We now have two other cities that
38 have asked, Spartanburg and Greenville, locations in
39 each of those cities that have asked us to make
40 available our clinic services there, also.
41 But the Focus on the Family gift is going to be
42 given media attention.  Hope to have you guys come out
43 and be present when we do that.  So there’s an open
44 invite.  I’ll let you guys know when that happens.  But
45 I wanted to give you guys the same respect that you
46 gave me.  Thank you.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate it. 
48 Thank you.  Mr. Thayer.
49 JORDAN THAYER:  Those are all
50 the names for the non-agenda matters.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
2 We’ll move on now to remarks from Council members. 
3 Ms. Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman.  What a sad and troubling report.  It’s quite
6 a sign of our times, isn’t it?  But on an upward note,
7 and I’m going to get with you, sir, and make a
8 contribution and maybe we all can, because that is such
9 an incredible mission that you’re performing.  
10 Has anyone been to our museum to see the veterans,
11 Andersonians in War?  That is a world-class
12 presentation.  It’s unbelievable that our small museum
13 on a shoestring budget and through all their fund-
14 raising have accomplished that.  It’s unbelievable. 
15 And a number of the veterans’ functions this weekend
16 were well-attended.  We had a good Veterans Day Parade. 
17 We are very blessed to have our veterans in this
18 county.  We hope we were at least able to pay our
19 respects and appreciation to them.
20 We have a lot going on and a lot of it is good. 
21 Thank you.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
23 Wilson.  Mr. Wright.
24 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman.  Just a couple of things I want to touch on
26 real quickly.  Our Litter Committee is making some good
27 progress.  I want to just say how much I appreciate
28 Greg Smith and his team and also from a citizen
29 standpoint, Greg Wilson, who was here earlier and Chad
30 Clardy who I know is back there, as well.  We are
31 making some good progress on that.  Should have a
32 pretty good update in the next couple of weeks on where
33 we are with that.
34 And then also just Mr. Burns and his staff on the
35 great lawn project out here behind the historic
36 courthouse.  I’ve had a number of people come up to me
37 and -- that were so appreciative of the fact that we
38 cleaned that site up and kind of right in a very
39 prominent location downtown.  It looks so much better
40 than it did before.  And it makes you proud to have the
41 county’s name associated with it.  So, Mr. Burns, and
42 your staff, I appreciate the work that y’all did there.
43 It really turned out nice.  Thank you.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
45 Mr. Graham.
46 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at this
47 time.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
49 Mr. Sanders.
50 BRETT SANDERS:  I would just



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 15, 2022

1 like to thank everyone for coming out.  And Ms. Speltz,
2 I hope that you guys, and everyone, travel safely home
3 in this inclement weather.  Thank you, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
5 On behalf of Mr. Glenn Davis, I’d just like to
6 remind everybody that there’s a food drive going on on
7 November 18th from 11:00 to 6:00.  And doing a little
8 friendly competition.  I think he done this last year
9 or what not.  Be at the Homeland Park Fire Department
10 where you drop your can goods off.  It’s Carolina
11 versus Clemson.  It’s a good thing as far as -- good
12 thing to get that up and hope that’ll be good.
13 I, too, hope everybody travels home safely and has
14 a good, safe holiday, Thanksgiving, and we’ll be back
15 here.
16 Meeting be adjourned.  Thank y’all.
17
18 MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:55 P.M.



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

DECEMBER 6, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS

    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the special presentation meeting of
3 Tuesday, December 6th, of Anderson County Council, 2022
4 to order.  I’d like to welcome each and every one of
5 you here tonight and thank y’all for coming.
6 The first order of business is a resolution,
7 2022-065, a Resolution to congratulate Pamela
8 Christopher upon being named the 2022 South Carolina
9 Chamber Executive of the Year; and other matters
10 related thereto.
11 Whereas, Pamela Christopher is the President and
12 CEO of the Anderson Area Chamber of Commerce, where she
13 oversees the day-to-day operations of an 870-member
14 organization dedicated to strengthening the business
15 community of Anderson County through promotion,
16 advocacy, connection, and education; and
17 Whereas, the Carolinas Association of Chamber of
18 Commerce Executives named Ms. Christopher the 2022
19 South Carolina Chamber Executive of the Year,
20 recognizing her as a long-term executive who has
21 excelled over her career in leading and innovatively
22 building her chamber, demonstrating excellence in areas
23 of chamber leadership, organizational management,
24 service to the profession, community
25 reputation/involvement, and personal attributes; and
26 Whereas, Ms. Christopher is pivotal to Anderson
27 County’s economic development success as a Chamber
28 president, as a South Carolina Department of
29 Transportation commissioner, and as a community leader
30 with an uncommon, extraordinary ability to promote and
31 foster significant collaboration and cross-agency
32 teamwork on many important projects among diverse
33 partner organizations across Anderson County.
34 Therefore, be it resolved that in a meeting duly
35 assembled this 15th day of November -- this is
36 backdated -- 2022 the Anderson County Council hereby
37 congratulates Ms. Christopher on her recognition as
38 2022 South Carolina Chamber Executive of the Year,
39 thanks her for her vital partnership with Anderson
40 County, and looks forward to working with her to make
41 our community better for years to come.
42 I put that in the form of a motion.
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by I
45 think the entire Council.  Any discussion?  It’ll be
46 Ms. Wilson and then Mr. Sanders.
47 CINDY WILSON:  It seems like
48 we have overlooked that Ms. Christopher is also a
49 highway commissioner doing an incredible job
50 representing the highway and road needs for the county. 



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
3

1 We really appreciate that effort, too.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
3 Sanders.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  I would just
5 like to thank Ms. Christopher for all that she does for
6 businesses, the community.  Thank her for her
7 leadership and helping me in things.  I’m excited for
8 her and I think it’s a good honor.  Thank you.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
10 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chair?
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
12 RAY GRAHAM:  Likewise, Ms.
13 Christopher, it’s been a pleasure working with you over
14 the past six years.  The Chamber is truly a vital part
15 of what -- the daily operations in Anderson County. 
16 And we just truly appreciate all that you do as far as
17 the work toward making Anderson County better.  Thank
18 you so much.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
20 Anyone else?  Mr. Glenn Davis.
21 GLENN DAVIS:  I’d also like
22 to piggyback on the other comments that were made.  The
23 first year that I was elected, Ms. Christopher was one
24 of the first ones to reach out to me and extend a
25 welcoming hand, offering any kind of help I may need. 
26 And I thank you for it.  You’ve been a help as I
27 gravitate through Council.  I thank you for all the
28 things that you’ve helped me with.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   I just want to
30 say, also, want to say it’s a well-deserved award. 
31 Appreciate what all you’ve done for the community and
32 Anderson County.  I know when I got on Council, from
33 then to today, I’m just very proud of what the Chamber
34 has become, the great partnership they have with
35 Anderson County Council and our community.  And I can
36 speak volumes on many a time that the Chamber has
37 helped close a deal on economic development, people
38 wanting to come to Anderson and have a meeting and
39 y’all show the business leaders around here what’s good
40 about Anderson County.  We sure do appreciate that and
41 all what you do, and we want to continue the working
42 relationship we have and appreciate what all you have
43 done.
44 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
45 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
46 unanimously. 
47 We’ll ask her to come on up and present her with
48 this, and anybody else.
49 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
50 APPLAUSE



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
4

1 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
2 move on now to item 2(b), Resolution 2022-067, Ms.
3 Cindy Wilson.  Councilman Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman.  This is a Resolution to congratulate the
6 Belton Preparatory Academy for its many achievements
7 including top test scores and designation as a Diamond
8 School of Excellence; and other matters related
9 thereto.
10 WHEREAS, the mission of Belton Preparatory Academy,
11 founded only in 2018, y’all, as the first classical
12 public charter school in South Carolina to prepare its
13 students to compete with integrity at the highest
14 levels of academics, using nationally recognized Eureka
15 math and core knowledge classical curriculum, producing
16 students who excel in academics and physical fitness
17 with a firm grounding in free market economic theory
18 and entrepreneurship.  
19 WHEREAS, Belton Preparatory Academy and its
20 students have become known for high test scores and
21 other achievements, scoring in the top one percent in
22 the state of South Carolina for math and the top two
23 percent for English, placing sixth overall in the state
24 out of 666 elementary schools, and first overall for
25 Title One schools, and 
26 WHEREAS, Belton Preparatory Academy has been
27 recognized as a Diamond School of Excellence, the
28 highest award given by the Charter Institute at Erskine
29 and has been recognized for its excellence by the South
30 Carolina House of Representatives, and
31 THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Anderson County
32 Council hereby congratulates the faculty, staff and
33 students of the Belton Preparatory Academy on their
34 many achievements, and expresses its gratitude for the
35 school representing our community so well in the field
36 of childhood education.
37 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 6th day
38 of December, 2022.
39 May I put that in the form of a motion?
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
41 Have a motion.  Have a second?
42 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
44 Graham.  Any further discussion?
45 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chair?
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
47 Graham.  Go ahead.
48 RAY GRAHAM:  Ms. Deirdre,
49 definitely congratulations.  That school could not be
50 led by a greater person.  Got a lot of love for you and



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
5

1 your family.  Definitely congratulations to you guys. 
2 I know it’s been a lot of hard work.  But that school
3 is truly shining.  And I know it’s got a lot to do with
4 the leadership and the team that you have built leading
5 that school.  So definitely congratulations on that.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
7 Ms. Wilson.
8 CINDY WILSON:  Adding to what
9 Mr. Graham said, to make this accomplishment in only
10 four years is nothing short of remarkable.  And I think
11 it attests to the quality of the people in our county,
12 once again.  If there’s a will, there is a way in
13 Anderson County.  So we’re so proud.  Thank you.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
15 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
16 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
17 unanimously. 
18 Ms. Wilson.
19 CINDY WILSON:  May we have
20 everyone, along with the prep school folks, down front.
21 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
22 APPLAUSE
23 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
24 move on to item 2(c).  This is Resolution 2022-068,
25 Councilman Graham.  Councilman Graham.
26 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
27 Chairman.  
28 Ms. Susan, they say they save the best for last. 
29 Randy told me to say that, okay?  
30 Mr. Chairman, I bring this in the form of a motion. 
31 This is Resolution R2022-068.  This is a Resolution to
32 honor and recognize Susan Pettigrew of the Starr-Iva
33 Water & Sewer District upon being named the 2022 South
34 Carolina Rural Water Association Office Manager of the
35 Year; and other matters related thereto.
36 WHEREAS, the mission of the Starr-Iva Water & Sewer
37 District is to provide safe, high quality water
38 services to the community while maintaining a standard
39 of excellence in customer service and environmental
40 conservation; and
41 WHEREAS, Susan Pettigrew has been employed with
42 Starr-Iva Water & Sewer System for the past 26 years;
43 and
44 WHEREAS, the South Carolina Rural Water Association
45 announced Ms. Pettigrew as the 2022 Office Manager of
46 the Year at its annual conference on November 16th,
47 citing “Susan’s many positive contributions…[to]
48 support Starr-Iva’s evolution into a modern,
49 sustainable utility…her years of professional financial
50 excellence [being] key in Starr-Iva obtaining an S&P



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
6

1 AA- rating…[and restructuring] over $11 million of
2 debt…[saving] Starr-Iva’s customers over $2 million in
3 interest”.
4 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
5 County Council hereby congratulates Susan Pettigrew and
6 Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District for winning statewide
7 recognition and, on behalf of the citizens of Anderson
8 County, thanks them for their committed, dedicated
9 service.
10 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 6th day
11 of December, 2022. 
12 Mr. Chairman, I bring this in the form of a motion.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
14 Mr. Graham.  Have a second?
15 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
17 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion?
18 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
20 Graham.
21 RAY GRAHAM:  Ms. Susan,
22 definitely want to congratulate you on this.  Wasn’t
23 too long ago we was recognizing the entire water
24 department, as well.  I know -- especially being on
25 Council, I see the impact that rural water authorities
26 -- what they bring to the table, whether it’s economic
27 development or whatever.  And y’all play a vital key to
28 making the districts, the communities sustainable in
29 providing that fresh water to us.  So definitely want
30 to thank you guys for the leadership and guidance that
31 you all do.  I know a lot of those folks down there on
32 the board, y’all have got a tough group.  But
33 definitely appreciate what y’all do and what y’all
34 bring to the community of Starr-Iva.  We definitely
35 thank you for that.  
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
37 Hearing and seeing none, call for the vote.  All in
38 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
39 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
40 Councilman Graham.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman,
42 if we could bring those guys up front.
43 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
44 APPLAUSE 
45 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
46 move on to item number 2(d), Proclamations.
47 A Proclamation designating December 2022 as Arbor
48 Day Month in Anderson County.
49 Whereas, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to
50 the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a special



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - December 6, 2022
7

1 day be set aside for the planting of trees, and
2 Whereas, the holiday, called Arbor Day, was first
3 observed with the planting of more than a million
4 trees in Nebraska, and
5 Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the
6 nation and the world, and
7 Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our
8 precious topsoil by wind and water, lower our heating
9 and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the
10 air, produce oxygen and provide habitat for wildlife,
11 and
12 Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us
13 paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires and
14 countless other wood products, and
15 Whereas, trees increase local property values,
16 enhance the economic vitality of business area, and
17 beautify our community, and
18 Whereas, trees, whenever they are planted, are a
19 source of joy and spiritual renewal,
20 Whereas, Anderson County values having trees in our
21 community so much, that it has earned and maintained
22 the Tree City USA designation since 2003.
23 NOW THEREFORE, we the Anderson County Council of
24 Anderson, South Carolina, do hereby proclaim December
25 2022 as Arbor Day Month in the County of Anderson,
26 South Carolina and encourage all citizens to celebrate
27 Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our trees
28 and woodlands.  And further, we urge all citizens to
29 plant and care for trees to gladden the heart and
30 promote the well-being of this and future generations.
31 PROCLAIMED on the 6th day of December, 2022.  
32 Put that in the form of a motion.
33 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
35 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
36 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
37 carries unanimously. 
38 I want to thank each of you for coming out.  We’ll
39 -- meeting will be adjourned and we’ll reconvene here
40 at 6:30 to start our regular meeting.
41
42 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:20 P.M.)



8

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

DECEMBER 6, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
9

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting of December 6th to order.  I’d like to thank
4 everyone for coming and welcome everyone here tonight
5 for coming.  
6 We have a couple of special guests from Oakwood
7 Christian School.  We have a Mr. Mackey sitting here on
8 the front here.  And then we have Ms. Jones and Ms.
9 Flowers back there at the back.  We want to welcome
10 each one of y’all here tonight.  And I think if Mr.
11 Burns hasn’t already told y’all, he can watch it on TV
12 about the stations and everything, get up on that right
13 there.  
14 And want to welcome -- I haven’t got to see him in
15 about two weeks, we want to welcome Matt Hogan here,
16 too, and thank Matt for coming and blessing us with our
17 things and everything.  I think he’s been taking off a
18 good bit.
19 CINDY WILSON:  Every time I’ve
20 called him, he’s answered the phone.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Well, I didn’t
22 even know it was gone until Mr. Burns told me.  You
23 know how my old saying goes on that.  No, he’s got a
24 good team and they’re doing a great job.
25 We’re going to move on now to invocation and pledge
26 of allegiance.  
27 Before we do that, though, I’d like for us to all
28 rise and have a moment of silence for Mr. Gary
29 McAlister from Williamston.  He passed away the last
30 couple of days.  And I know there are some people just
31 as fine as he is, but there’s nobody no finer than Mr.
32 McAlister was.  He served us on our Anderson Economic
33 Development Board for years.  He was just a true
34 Southern gentleman and good Christian man.
35 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman,
36 may I add to it.  He really made the building industry
37 here high caliber.  So many of our local builders got
38 their start or felt like they could depend on Mr.
39 Gary’s life counsel.  So he just did a lot of good
40 things for a lot of people.  Thank you.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Let’s bow our
42 heads in a moment of silence.
43 MOMENT OF SILENCE
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Amen.
45 Now, Mr. Brett Sanders will lead us in the
46 invocation and pledge of allegiance.  Councilman
47 Sanders.
48 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
49 Chairman.  
50 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
10

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Now, approval
2 of October 4th minutes.  Are there any changes or
3 corrections to be made to those?
4 CINDY WILSON:  If I may, Mr.
5 Chairman.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
7 CINDY WILSON:  On page 8 of
8 4th.  Medal of Honor should be spelled with a D.  And
9 that’s line 28.  And on page 9, and I may be corrected
10 on this, but I’m pretty sure on line 34, it’s New
11 Broadmouth Baptist Church.  And Mr. Hulon’s name is
12 Ryan rather than Ron, down on line 48.  That’s just
13 simple typos.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   You make the
15 motion to accept with those corrections, Ms. Wilson?
16 CINDY WILSON:  May we accept
17 the minutes with those corrections?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson
19 makes a motion.  Do we have a second?
20 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
22 Glenn Davis.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
23 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
24 unanimously.  
25 And I apologize.  Mr. John Wright, Jr. is out of
26 town and will not be here tonight.  On business.
27 We’re going to move on to the second thing, are
28 there any corrections to be made to the October 8th,
29 2022 meeting?  Hearing and seeing none, do we have a
30 motion to move this forward?
31 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
33 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
34 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
36 Glenn Davis.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
37 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
38 unanimously.
39 We’re going to move on now to item number --
40 minutes of November the 1st, 2022.  Are there any
41 corrections or changes to be made to that?
42 CINDY WILSON:  May I make the
43 motion that we accept as presented?
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson
45 makes the motion to accept as received.  Do we have a
46 second?
47 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
49 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion?  I’m sorry.  All in favor
50 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
11

1 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
2 I’d just like to say we’ve waited a while on these
3 minutes.  Maybe it’s a good thing.  Three meetings
4 worth of minutes and only a couple of corrections on a
5 simple typo.  That’s pretty good.
6 Moving on.  Citizens comments on agenda items only. 
7 Mr. Burns has already stated there was no one signed
8 up. 
9 So we’re going to move on to item number 5.  This
10 will be a public hearing. 5(a), this is an Ordinance
11 authorizing, under certain conditions, the execution
12 and delivery by Anderson County, South Carolina of a
13 second amended fee in lieu of taxes agreement with
14 Robert Bosch LLC (formerly known to the County as
15 "Project Triangle") with respect to a project in the
16 County whereby the project would be subject to payment
17 of certain fees in lieu of taxes and would be provided
18 certain special source credits against fee payments;
19 and other matters related thereto.
20 We’re going to have a public hearing on this.  But
21 before we do that we’re going to ask Mr. Nelson if
22 he’ll say a few comments.
23 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
24 Chairman, members of Council.  Of course, this is a
25 fabulous project, two hundred million dollars in
26 capital investment, creating 350 jobs with annual pay
27 average greater than thirty dollars an hour.  New
28 annual payroll for the county alone is twenty-one
29 million dollars.  This has a community impact over a 20
30 year period of three hundred and forty-four million
31 dollars.  And over the forty year period of the fee
32 agreement, 1.532 billion dollars in total community
33 impact.  And of course, this is the hydrogen fuel cell
34 project that will revolutionize travel for big Class A
35 trucks.  Thank you, sir.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
37 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak
38 to this matter, please step forward, state your name,
39 your district and address the chair, please.  Anyone at
40 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
41 be closed.  Do we have a motion to put this on the
42 floor?
43 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
44 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
46 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Now open the floor up for
47 discussion.
48 CINDY WILSON:  This is just
49 incredible.  The potential of this project is just
50 really amazing.  There was an article in the Wall



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
12

1 Street Journal about the time that we heard about the
2 project.  And I think the first prototype was in
3 Germany or was it ---
4 BURRISS NELSON:  That’s right.
5 CINDY WILSON:  Yeah.  So now
6 it’s here in South Carolina.  That is incredible. 
7 Thank you, Mr. Burriss and Mr. Burns.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
9 Anyone else?  I’d just like to say appreciate what all
10 y’all done putting this together, you and your team. 
11 This is something a lot of people would love to have
12 and very few is going to get.  So appreciate what all
13 y’all have done on this for the time being.
14 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, sir.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   All in favor of
16 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
17 the motion carries unanimously. 
18 We’re going to move on to item number 5(b), which
19 is also a public hearing.  It’s 2022-052, an Ordinance
20 to amend an agreement for the development of a joint
21 county industrial and business park (2010 Park) of
22 Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the
23 park. [SRPF/Greenville Park 25].
24 This will be a public hearing.  Before we go on,
25 I’ll ask Mr. Nelson to say a few words.  Mr. Nelson.
26 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, Mr.
27 Chairman.  This allows projects that will be going into
28 those properties in Greenville County to receive
29 additional incentives from the South Carolina
30 Department of Commerce.  And we have a reciprocal
31 agreement for projects from Anderson that receive the
32 same kind of benefits.  This is an opportunity for
33 growth in both counties.  And Greenville County Council
34 sends their thanks for our Council giving it
35 consideration.  Thank you, sir.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
37 Nelson.  Be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak
38 to this matter, please step forward and state your name
39 and district and address the chair, please.  Public
40 hearing.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none,
41 public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to
42 put this on the floor?
43 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
45 Wilson.  Do we have a second?  
46 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   By Mr. Glenn
48 Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all
49 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
50 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
13

1 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you and
3 your team.
4 Moving on to item number 6(a), 2022-055, an
5 Ordinance to approve the grant of a right-of-way
6 easement to Duke Energy Carolinas LLC, on real property
7 owned by Anderson County, South Carolina; and other
8 matters related thereto. 
9 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
10 speak to this matter, please step forward and address
11 the chair, state your name and district for the record. 
12 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
13 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move
14 this forward?
15 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
17 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Second
20 Councilman Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
21 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
22 the motion carries unanimously. 
23 We’re going to move on now to 7(a), first reading, 
24 2022-056, an Ordinance to restrict the use of certain
25 real property owned by Anderson County, South
26 Carolina, to public outdoor recreational use; and other
27 matters related thereto.
28 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
29 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
31 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
32 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
34 Glenn Davis.  Now open the floor up for discussion. 
35 Mr. Burns, do you want to elaborate on this just a
36 little bit.
37 RUSTY BURNS:  ... five
38 hundred and fifty thousand dollar grant to develop the
39 Piedmont property that Council acquired right below the
40 damn in Piedmont.  This is a requirement of the grant,
41 that it will be used for outdoor recreational purposes
42 only.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
44 discussion?  Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion
45 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
46 carries unanimously.
47 We’re going to move on to item number 7(b),
48 2022-057, an Ordinance to amend Section 24-367 of the
49 Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, to
50 increase the time period for final plat approval and to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
14

1 change who may grant extensions of this time period;
2 and other matters related thereto.  Ms. Wilson.
3 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
4 Chairman.  It was recently brought to our attention
5 that our final plat, while basically was not meshing
6 with the state law, and we had lots and lots of
7 questions about that.  What we learned during our
8 meeting Friday was that this is a matter of being in
9 compliance with the state codes regarding final
10 subdivision plat in vested rights issues.  We revised
11 our codes in 2021, but have just learned that the state
12 passed a law in 2004 requiring counties to enact their
13 own land development ordinances or regulations pursuant
14 to Act 2849 by July 1, 2005, with Section 6-29-1520
15 (10) and 6-29-1530, most pertinent relating to the
16 question of vested rights of the landowner in applying
17 to the local governing body for annual extensions after
18 the two-year vested right in an approved site-specific
19 development plan.  We discussed this situation with our
20 county attorney and our Planning Director.  Among our
21 many questions relating to a possible seven-year window
22 for developer to stop pollucite before beginning actual
23 development was, (1) how is the property to be taxed? 
24 Perhaps going from the agricultural assessment to
25 residential, commercial, industrial, which is taxed at
26 a different rate.  That needs to be answered.  
27 Secondly, over seven years with each of these five-
28 year annual renewals, too much can change from what was
29 first proposed to the dirt being moved.  For example,
30 stormwater, Corp of Engineers, road standards and so
31 forth and how could adjustments be made to accommodate
32 those changes once in the final plat approval mode?  
33 And also, the county staff’s possible
34 responsibility of modification to the developer when he
35 has a benchmark time schedule to meet.  Those are just
36 some of the questions.  
37 So I’m going to ask, before we go further, are
38 there any questions from our County Council members
39 regarding this?  If not, I’m going to make a motion
40 that we table this until we’ve had time to more
41 thoroughly review and understand this.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   I second that. 
43 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
44 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
45 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
46 Chairman, and thank you everyone who worked on this.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
48 Wilson.
49 We’re going to move on to item number 8, 8(a),
50 Resolution 2022-069, a Resolution ... Councilman



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
15

1 Sanders.
2 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
3 Chairman.  Basically what this is, I had met with Mayor
4 Crenshaw and his staff, and this is a Resolution to
5 show support for the town of Pendleton in the
6 revitalization projects, street scape, landscape,
7 roads, bridges, infrastructure on a Village Hills
8 redevelopment project.  It will be funded by tax
9 increment financing.  It will have no cost on or to
10 Anderson County.  
11 So would just like to put that in the form of a
12 motion.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
15 motion by Mr. Sanders.  Have a second?
16 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
18 Wilson.  Any discussion?
19 CINDY WILSON:  Quick question. 
20 I think I know the answer.  That property belongs to
21 the city of Pendleton, so it’s not paying taxes now
22 anyway; is it?
23 BRETT SANDERS:  No, ma’am. 
24 CINDY WILSON:  Okay.  So we
25 don’t have to worry about a reduction in our ---
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Sure don’t.
27 CINDY WILSON:  And the tax
28 increment financing tool is a great way to revitalize
29 communities.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
31 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
32 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
33 We’re going to move ---
34 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
35 Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
37 Sanders.  
38 Moving on to item number 9, approval for the 2022-
39 2023 road improvement plan by the ACTC funds.  That’s
40 the Anderson County Transportation Committee.  Do we
41 have a motion to put this -- we all had a copy of these
42 ---
43 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   --- roads. 
45 Motion to put this on the floor?
46 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
48 Sanders.  Have a second?
49 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
16

1 Glenn Davis.  Now open the floor up for discussion. 
2 Mr. Hogan, you have anything you want to add?
3 MATT HOGAN:  I just ---
4 TOMMY DUNN:   We haven’t
5 heard nothing from you in a while.  You want to say
6 something?
7 MATT HOGAN:   So what I’m
8 asking for, this is our C-fund money that I’m going
9 for.  C-fund just got a one-time monies.  I think their
10 budget is now 13 million.  I’m going for it with a six-
11 million dollar packet that I’ve got tonight.  These
12 roads have been on our list for a long time.  We’d like
13 to get these paved.  There’s a little bit -- some in
14 your district.  Kind of spread them out.  I believe
15 Brown Road is on there.  Some of Michelin Boulevard. 
16 Some of Mr. Davis’s, Roper Road, we get a lot of
17 complaints about.  And I’m just asking approval for
18 this list so I can take it to ---
19 TOMMY DUNN:   All of this is
20 something your staff has well vetted and looked at and
21 prioritized and y’all this is what needs to be done.
22 MATT HOGAN:   Yes, sir.
23 TOMMY DUNN:    Anyone else? 
24 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
25 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
26 Thank you.
27 MATT HOGAN:   Thank you.
28 BRETT SANDERS:   Would those
29 roads be on our website?  Well, they’ll be listed once
30 they get funded?
31 MATT HOGAN:   They will,
32 yes, once it’s approved.  My next step, I’ll go to the
33 C-fund, and they have to approve this now.
34 TOMMY DUNN:    And y’all know
35 how that works.  They’ve got a meeting coming up and
36 they’ve got a spot open on the board now.  Thank y’all.
37 Moving on to item number 10, approval of third
38 amendment to the Commercial Lease Agreement between
39 Anderson County and One World Technologies, Inc.  Do we
40 have a motion to put this on the floor?
41 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
42 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
44 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  
45 Mr. Burns.
46 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
47 TTI, they are moving out of portions of that thing so
48 we have to amend the lease.  We already have somebody
49 else that is ready to move in.  So this is just the
50 paperwork to keep us on the straight and narrow.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
17

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
2 discussion, questions, comments?  All in favor of the
3 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
4 motion carries unanimously. 
5 Moving on to item number 11, change orders and bid
6 approvals.  We had 11(a), number 23-021, pump station
7 improvements.  Anybody want to ...
8 BRETT SANDERS:  That is at the
9 Gilmer Road ---
10 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.  The
11 low bid is Harper Corporation, one million three
12 hundred eighty-five thousand dollars.  We had five
13 people to bid on the project.  Six people; excuse me.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
15 motion to move this forward?
16 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
17 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
19 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Now any discussion?  All
20 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
21 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
22 We’re going to move on to item number 11(b), Bid
23 number 23-023 ACTC number 124.  
24 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
25 this is a bid that’s put out, S&S Construction has
26 received it.  The price is one million one hundred
27 seventy-eight thousand nine hundred fourteen dollars
28 and forty-six cents.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
30 motion to move this forward?
31 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
33 Wilson.  Have a second?
34 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
36 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
37 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
38 motion carries unanimously. 
39 We’re going to move on to item number (c) change
40 order number 01, Five Mile Phase IV Rehabilitation.  Do
41 we have a motion to put this on the floor?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
43 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
45 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Mr. Burns, anybody have
46 anything they want to say on this?
47 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
48 this is the continuing process the Council has been
49 working on for well over 14 years to rehabilitate the
50 Five Mile sewer line, which is the backbone of our



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
18

1 sewer system in urban Anderson County.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore
3 discussion, comments, questions?  All in favor of the
4 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
5 motion carries unanimously. 
6 Thank y’all.
7 We’re going to move on to number 12, report from
8 Planning Commission and Public Works Committee meeting
9 held on December 2nd, 2022.  Chairman Wilson.  Ms.
10 Wilson.
11 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
12 Chairman.  We’ve already gone over the final plat
13 issue.  
14 The next item was the update restructure setbacks
15 for clarification.  And this was handled as information
16 for our Council’s consideration, probably in the new
17 year.  These materials will be provided to all members
18 and the public to become more familiar with it for --
19 prior to a vote.
20 Next our county engineers, Gaye Sprague and Matt
21 Hogan, provided information and recommendations for
22 road classifications.  As our county is growing so
23 rapidly, with increasing traffic volumes, changing
24 traffic patterns and wear and tear on our roads that
25 are wearing out quite rapidly, we reviewed examples of
26 the difference between SCDOT and potential new Anderson
27 County road turn lane guidelines.  The new proposed
28 developments are increasing in already congested areas. 
29 And we need to have measures that protect our traveling
30 public and allow for people to get into and out of
31 these new proposed development projects safely and
32 efficiently.  And we do not need to place the huge and
33 increasing burden on our taxpayers to retroactively
34 rebuild or improve intersections where new development
35 is already a concern.  This is a cost of doing business
36 everywhere but in our county.  So we need to look at
37 this issue and come up with sensible, fair measures
38 that takes the burden off the taxpayer and keep our
39 roads safe.
40 We then had an associate of RAS, Roadway Asset
41 Services, which pitched to the county the notion of
42 being engaged by us to conduct a really high-tech
43 evaluation of the condition of all the county roads --
44 county maintained roads, so that we could prioritize
45 spending and methods of maintenance.  The basic gist is
46 that preserving road conditions at a lower cost and an
47 earlier time table would save mega bucks at a later
48 time.  The projected cost of this study is
49 approximately three hundred thousand dollars.  
50 Next, it has become glaringly evident with



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
19

1 extensive mass grading more than one-acre disturbance
2 that we need to establish sensible ground rules for the
3 governance of this situation which we’ve seldom seen
4 prior to recently.  Especially troubling is the
5 stormwater runoff impacts that many of these sites are
6 causing.  Mr. John Batson, our Stormwater Manager,
7 brought to our attention a recent South Carolina DHEC
8 report for our MS4 compliance audit.  While we received
9 a satisfactory rating, the increasing impairment of
10 many of our once beautiful, clean waterways is
11 alarming.  The MS4 designation is defined as a small
12 municipal separate storm sewer system.  Our permit
13 covers Anderson County and the city of Belton.  
14 Let me find the next part of our discussion here. 
15 I would like to read to you about a paragraph in the
16 report and I would invite you to study the complete
17 document.  Anderson County MS4 discharges to Big
18 Generosity Creek, Rocky River, Wilson Creek, Upper
19 Saluda River and Upper Savannah River.  All five water
20 bodies have fecal coliform as a pollutant of concern. 
21 The city of Belton MS4 discharges to Broadmouth Creek
22 and Rocky River Wilson Creek.  Both of those water
23 bodies have fecal coliform as a pollutant of concern.  
24 The MS4 and its co-permitted discharged to seven
25 impaired waters that are on the 303(d) list.  They are,
26 Big Brushy Creek impaired for bio, Rocky River impaired
27 for turbidity, Lake Hartwell impaired for pH, Broadway
28 Creek impaired for turbidity and bio, Betsy Creek
29 impaired for fecal coliform, Hen Coop Creek impaired
30 for bio, tributary to Broadmouth Creek impaired for
31 bio.  The continued proper implementation of MS4
32 Stormwater Management Plan helps reduce the further
33 degradation of these impaired receiving waters.  No
34 deficiencies were noted in this section.  
35 We’re going to try to study this coming up.  It
36 should be noted that our sewer infrastructure that had
37 fallen into bad repair years ago, is a primary problem
38 in that area of concern.
39 The next, we briefly touched on a potential tree
40 ordinance.  I believe the Arbor Day Proclamation you
41 read, Mr. Chairman, flushes out a lot of what we need
42 to think about there.  We’ll study in closer detail
43 soon and copies of the proposal will be at your mailbox
44 soon.
45 We’re got a lot of moving targets that we need to
46 really go over if we want our beautiful county to stay
47 beautiful.  And a lot of it just boils down to sensible
48 measures that are fair and frequently are less
49 expensive than doing things maybe the old way.  
50 So I appreciate everybody’s efforts.  We had great



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
20

1 staff participation and my fellow Council members on
2 the committee made great sacrifices to be there, too. 
3 So we’ll pick this up in the new year, and I’m sure
4 you’re going to spend lots of time during Christmas
5 studying all of this.  
6 Thank you so much.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
8 Wilson.  Thank y’all.  Thank you for all your committee
9 has done.
10 We’re going to move on now to request by Council
11 members.  Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Councilman Davis.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
13 Chair.  From the special appropriations account for
14 District 6, I’d like to appropriate to the Wren Bass
15 Team -- I do want to say that the Wren Bass Team
16 managers also have taken in kids from Hanna and
17 Westside and Powdersville.  So Mr. and Ms. Stone, Mark
18 Stone and his wife Sherry, do this out of volunteer
19 work.  They take all kids.  They just happen to keep
20 the name Wren Bass Team.  But I would like to make a
21 motion to appropriate one thousand dollars to the Wren
22 Bass Team.  And I make that in the form of a motion.
23 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
25 Mr. Jimmy Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
26 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
27 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
28 Mr. Davis?
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  That’s all.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
31 Mr. Sanders.
32 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
33 Chairman.  Out of my special appropriations account, I
34 would like to contribute five hundred to the Wren Bass
35 Team.  And I’m like to put all of these in one motion.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   You can.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  Five hundred to
38 Belton American Legion, five hundred to the Anderson
39 Pregnancy Care, two thousand to the Palmetto Knights. 
40 That’s from District 4.  I put that in the form of a
41 motion.  But I also have District 1's.  He’s not here,
42 but he asked me ---
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  We’ll do
44 yours first.  Do we have -- a motion by Mr. Sanders.
45 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
47 Jimmy Davis, Councilman Davis.  Do we have any
48 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
49 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
50 unanimously.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
21

1 We’re going to go back to Mr. Sanders for John
2 Wright, Councilman Wright’s.
3 BRETT SANDERS: Yeah, this
4 is Councilman Wright, District 1.  He requested out of
5 his appropriations account five hundred to the Wren
6 Bass Team, five hundred to the Belton American Legion,
7 five hundred to Anderson Pregnancy Care, five hundred
8 Palmetto Knights and five hundred Tackling the Streets. 
9 Put that in the form of a motion.
10 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
12 Mr. Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All
13 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
14 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
15 Moving on to Councilman Davis, Councilman Glenn
16 Davis.
17 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chairman.  I’d like to appropriate out of my special
19 appropriations account -- can I do them all at one
20 time?
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, you
22 can.
23 GLENN DAVIS:  The Belton
24 American Legion two fifty, Anderson Pregnancy Care five
25 hundred, Palmetto Knights five hundred.  Put that in
26 the form of a motion.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Any discussion? 
29 Ms. Wilson seconded that.  Any discussion?  All in
30 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
31 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
32 Moving on to Councilman Graham.  Councilman.
33 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chairman.  I want to do this all at once if that’s
35 possible?
36 TOMMY DUNN:   You can.
37 RAY GRAHAM:  Bring this in
38 the form of a motion.  Twenty-five hundred dollars to
39 Belton American Legion, fifteen hundred dollars to
40 Anderson Pregnancy Center.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a ---
42 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   --- motion by
44 Councilman Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Any further
45 discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the motion
46 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
47 carries unanimously. 
48 Ms. Wilson.
49 CINDY WILSON:  District 7 is
50 at the bottom of the barrel financially, but I would



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
22

1 like to appropriate from our District 7 recreation
2 account five hundred dollars for the Belton American
3 Legion Post 51, and wish there would be sufficient
4 funds to provide for the other requests.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
6 motion by Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
9 Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
10 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
11 carries unanimously.
12 From District 5's special account for
13 appropriations, I would like to do five hundred dollars
14 for the Wren Bass Team, five hundred dollars to the
15 Belton American Legion, five hundred dollars to the
16 Pregnancy Care, five hundred dollars for Palmetto
17 Knights, and five hundred dollars for Tackling the
18 Streets.  And I put that in the form of a motion.
19 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
21 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
22 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
23 carries unanimously.
24 We’re going to move on now to the administrator’s
25 report.
26 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
27 time, Mr. Chairman.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
29 We’re going to move on now to citizens comments.  I
30 believe Mr. Burns said earlier there was none. 
31 We’ll go to remarks from Council members.  Ms.
32 Wilson.
33 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chairman.  I appreciate the hard work everyone conducts
35 every day in our county, especially our wonderful
36 employees, and we have really engaged citizens.  And I
37 wanted to point out, we have members of the media here
38 tonight, Mr. Greg Wilson and Mr. David Meade, that
39 probably has the best little weekly newspaper in the
40 county.  You find more news in Mr. Meade’s paper that
41 deals with the county than you do in the local daily. 
42 So I want to give him a thumbs up and thank everybody
43 for their hard work.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
45 Councilman Graham.
46 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
47 Chairman.  Just want to -- basically just want to thank
48 all the Council members for the privilege of serving
49 with each one of you over the past six years.  Also for
50 the county employees, it’s truly been a pleasure



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
23

1 serving for them.  And I think we’ve truly accomplished
2 a lot over the past six years.  I really look forward
3 to seeing what you continue to accomplish.  I hope and
4 pray that each day -- and this is going to the
5 employees -- you continue to come in and basically look
6 at how you leave today and know that you left it better
7 than it was the day before.  And I know each one of you
8 will.  Great group of folks.  Other than that, that’s
9 all I’ve got.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
11 Councilman Graham.  
12 Moving on to Councilman Glenn Davis.  Mr. Davis.
13 GLENN DAVIS:  Nothing at this
14 time.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
16 Davis.  
17 Moving on now to Councilman Sanders.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
19 Chairman.  I would just like to thank everyone who took
20 part in making our Christmas tree look as great as it
21 did.  We had a great turnout, a lot of people.  It was
22 a very good time.  I enjoyed it.  And it seemed
23 everyone else had a great time, as well.  Just want to
24 thank our employees.  And Matt Hogan, every time I call
25 you, you always answered me, and I really appreciate
26 that, sir.  Thank you.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
28 Councilman Jimmy Davis.
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing at this
30 time, sir.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
32 I’d just like for us all to keep in mind -- keep
33 our thoughts and prayers on what we’re thankful for. 
34 Remember tomorrow is D-Day.  A lot soldiers and
35 families sacrificed.  Keep in mind what we were able to
36 do and keep that in mind and never take it for granted.
37 Hope we all have a good, safe Christmas.  The next
38 Council meeting will be at lunch time, like we always
39 do, our next regular Council meeting at 11:00.  And
40 that’s on a regular date, regular time like we always
41 do, third Tuesday of the month.  For the last, I don’t
42 know how many years, we’ve done it at 11:00.
43 Also, want to thank Mr. Burns and my fellow Council
44 members for helping put together the appreciation
45 breakfast this morning for the county employees.  I
46 think it was a big crowd there.  I come back through at
47 10:00 and there was still a bunch of people coming in
48 there.  Big success, good food, and employees seemed to
49 enjoy it.  Appreciate what all they do and thank them.
50 Also to piggyback on Mr. Sanders, I want to thank



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - December 6, 2022
24

1 Mr. Burns.  I was one of them that voted against that
2 Christmas tree years ago when it come up.  I ain’t too
3 big to say I was against it.  But it’s been a huge
4 success.  People really enjoyed it the other night.  I
5 really did enjoy it.  Had a lot of good comments about
6 the arrangements and changing it up this time and doing
7 it on this.  It was a big thing.  Appreciate what all
8 you do, and it’s got to be a good, fun event for people
9 to come out.  I think this is one of the -- it no
10 record or nothing, but it seems to be it was the
11 biggest year since I’ve been on Council that more
12 people was there at this one than have been.  And I
13 know it’s got to be a family thing, people coming
14 taking Thanksgiving pictures over there when you come
15 through, Mr. Burns, people come there taking pictures
16 when you light it up for the Thanksgiving weekend,
17 people come.  Really appreciate that and what all you
18 do.
19 Hope everybody stays safe and appreciate what all
20 we’ve accomplished, what all we’ve done, and like I
21 said we’ve got things coming up and keep our employees
22 in our thoughts and minds and I’m glad to see Mr. Hogan
23 back with us tonight.  Thank y’all.
24 Meeting will be adjourned.
25
26 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:07 P.M.)



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-056 

AN ORDINANCE TO RESTRICT THE USE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED 
BY ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO PUBLIC OUTDOOR 
RECREATIONAL USE; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Code requires a public hearing prior to the sale of 
real property; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County is the current owner of 28.02 acres of land located west 
of the Saluda River in Anderson County, South Carolina, and identified by tax map number 240-
00-03-008; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to encumber the above referenced land for the 
benefit of the public and as a condition to receive award money from the Department of the 
Interior through the South Carolina Land and Water Conservation Fund.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1.  The Anderson County Council hereby approves the restriction of the use of tax 
parcel 240-00-03-008 through a restrictive deed, as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, to 
public outdoor recreational use as a condition of the receipt of money from the Department of the 
Interior. The County Administrator is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and or behalf of the County to carry out 
the transaction authorized by this Ordinance. 

2. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, 
Anderson County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 
3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 

4. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third 
reading in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 

 
 

ORDAINED in a meeting duly assembled this 3rd day of January, 2023. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
 



 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 
First Reading:       December 6, 2022 
Second Reading:   December 20, 2022 
Third Reading:      January 3, 2023 
Public Hearing:     January 3, 2023 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE  

COVENANTS 

THIS DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS is made this 3rd day of January, 2023, by 
Anderson County, a political subdivision of the state of South Carolina. ("Declarants"). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
WHEREAS, Declarants are the owners of certain real property including a total of 28.02 acres of land 
located west of the Saluda River in Anderson County, South Carolina.  
 
WHEREAS, Declarant’s interest in the property is found in a quitclaim deed, which describes said property 
as: 
 
all that piece, parcel or lot of land lying and being in Anderson County, South Carolina, containing 28.02 
acres of land, more or less, as shown on plat entitled “Boundary Survey for Anderson County” prepared by 
Upstate Surveying Associates, LLC dated June 10, 2020 and recorded in Plat Book S2686 at Page 2 in the 
Register of Deeds Office for Anderson County SC; the property hereby conveyed being composed of Tract 
“A” (21.38 acres) more or less, Tract “B” (5.78 acres) more or less and Tract “C” (0.86 acres) more or less. 
Reference to said plat for a more complete metes and bounds description therein.  
 
TMS: 240-00-03-008 
 
This being the same property conveyed to Anderson County, South Carolina, by deed of Saluda Ridge 
Holdings, LLC recorded on July 1, 2020, in deed book 14607 at Page 257 in the Anderson County Register 
of Deeds Office. 
 
WHEREAS, Declarants are recipients of award monies from the Department of Interior’s Land and Water 
Conservation Fund for development of the riverfront park in Piedmont. A condition of receipt of said monies 
is the execution of a restrictive covenant upon the land that the land be used exclusively for public recreation 
purposes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Declarant hereby declares that the Property shall be held, transferred, conveyed, 
leased, occupied or otherwise disposed of and used subject to the following restrictive covenants, which shall 
run with the land and be binding on all heirs, successors, assigns (they are included in the term, "Declarant," 
below), lessees, or the occupiers and users. 
 

1.  Declaration of Restrictive Covenant. Declarant intends to encumber the above referenced 
property by imposing the following restrictive covenant to run with the land: 
 

This property has been acquired or developed with Federal financial assistance provided by the 
National Park Service of the Department of the Interior in accordance with the Land and Water 
Conservation Fund Act of 1965, as amended. Pursuant to a requirement of that law, this property 
may not be converted to other than public outdoor recreation uses (whether by transfer, sale or in any 
other manner) without the express written approval of the Secretary of the Interior. The Secretary 
shall approve such conversion only if he finds it to be in accord with the then existing 
comprehensive statewide outdoor recreation plan and only upon such conditions as he deems 
necessary to assure the substitution of other recreation properties of at least equal fair market value 
and of reasonably equivalent usefulness and location.



 

 
2. Reservation of Rights. It is expressly understood and agreed that these restrictive covenants do 

not grant or convey to members of the general public any rights of ownership, entry or use of the Property. These 
restrictive covenants are created solely for the protection of the Property, and for the consideration and values set 
forth above, and Declarants reserve the ownership of the fee simple estate and all rights appertaining thereto, 
including without limitation the rights to exclude others and to use the property for all purposes not inconsistent 
with theses restrictive covenants. 
 

3. Property Transfers. Declarants shall include the following notice on all deeds, mortgages, plats 
or any other legal instruments used to convey any interest in the Property (failure to comply with this paragraph 
does not impair the validity or enforceability of these restrictive covenants): 
 
NOTICE: This property subject to declaration of restrictive covenants found in record book ________, page 
______, in the Anderson County Register of Deeds Office. 
 

4. Recording of Plat. Drawings depicting the boundaries of the Property subject to these restrictive 
covenants are recorded in the deed records office for Anderson County in book S2686 at Page 2. 
 

5. Separability Provision. Should any separable part of these restrictive covenants be held contrary 
to law, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarants have duly executed this Declaration of Restrictive Covenants the date 
written above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THIS AREA INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

IN THE PRESENCE OF:  
 
 
WITNESS  Declarant’s hand and seal this _____ day of January, 2023. 
  
DECLARANT:  
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
_______________________________________ (Seal)               
By: Rusty Burns,  
Its: Administrator 
 
 
 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of:   
 
        _______________________________ (Seal) 
 
 
        _______________________________ (Seal) 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  ) 
                                                                                    
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Rusty Burns, as Administrator for Anderson County, 
South Carolina, and the other witness above-named this _____ day of January, 2023, and the subscribing 
witness swore to me that he/she is not a party to or beneficiary of this transaction. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ (Seal) 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
Printed Name: ___________________________ 
 
My Commission Expires:___________________             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

NPGVL1:2281621.1  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-058 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcel(s) in Greenville County;  
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that (i) Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and (ii) Exhibit B to the Agreement is hereby and shall 
be amended and revised to include property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached 
to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and Exhibit A 
and Exhibit B as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ___________, 2023.  
 
ATTEST 
 
 
________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Administrator, Anderson County Chairman, Anderson County Council    
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Renee Watts 
 Clerk to Anderson County Council 
  



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 
 
 
First Reading: December 20, 2022  
Second Reading: January 3, 2023 
Third Reading: ________________ 
Public Hearing: ________________ 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
MP I-85 Masters Industrial, LLC (Project Bullseye 1; Project Bullseye 2; and Project Bullseye 3) 
 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being on the southern side of Interstate 
Highway 1-85 (U.S. Highway #29) in the County of Greenville, State of South Carolina, containing 72.595 
acres (net of railroad right-of-way) more or less, as shown on plat of survey entitled “Survey for Patton-
Garrison Property” made by Freeland & Associates dated June 15, 1984, and having according to said 
survey the following metes and bounds, to-wit: 

Beginning at an iron pin on the southern edge of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 1-85 at the 
intersection of said right-of-way with the center line of the Seaboard Coast Line Railroad; thence leaving 
the right-of-way of said highway and with the center line of the Railroad, the following courses and 
distances: S. 18-53E., 280.90 feet to a point, S. 18-42 E. 100.00 feet to a point; S. 17-05 E., 100.00 feet to 
a point, S. 14-38 E., 100.00 feet to a point, S. 11-31 E., 100.00 feet to a point, S. 8-11 E., 100.00 feet to a 
point, S. 5-39 E., 100.00 feet to a point; S. 1-46 E., 165.10 feet to a point, S. 0-19 E. 1300.00 feet to a point 
at the corner of tract of 70.987 acres; thence with the line of said tract N. 74-52 W., 2608.67 feet to an iron 
pin on the southern edge of the right of-way of Interstate Highway 1-85; thence with said right-of-way the 
following courses and distances: N. 32-02 E., 108.11 feet to an iron pin, N. 37-40 E., 263.34 feet to an iron 
pin, N. 43-56 E. 233.26 feet to an iron pin, N. 53-18 E., 447.64 feet to an iron pin, N. 59-03 E., 730.23 feet 
to an iron pin, N. 60-29 E., 998.10 feet to an iron pin and N. 59-03 E., 58.80 feet to an iron pin at the center 
of railroad, the point of beginning . 

LESS AND EXCEPT that portion of the property conveyed to South Carolina Department of 
Highways and Public Transportation by deed of Junius H. Garrison, Jr., Herbert S. Garrison, Murray T. 
Jackson and Larry L. Benson dated June 10, 1992, and recorded in Deed Book 1481 at Page 482. 

TMS #: WG11000300100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

Addition to Exhibit B to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
Anderson Land, LLC (Project Limestone) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel of tract of land lying, being and situate in the County of Anderson, State of 
South Carolina containing 71.800 acres, more or less, and shown as Tract 1A on a plat prepared for Anderson 
Land, LLC by Samuel B. Glenn, Jr. P.E. & L.S. (PLS Number 24277) dated May 13, 2022 and recorded in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds Office for Anderson County in Plat Book S2926 at Page 2 and having the 
metes and bounds as shown thereon. 
 
Tax Map No. Part of 1440005004 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NPGVL1:2281621.1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ______________, ______________, and 
______________, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public 
_______________.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ___________, 2022 
 
 



Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 1 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 

 
Ordinance #2023-001 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, 
identified as 2647 Anderson Hwy Williamston in the Williamston Mill Precinct 
shown in Deed Book 14259 page 187. The parcel is further identified as TMS 
#197-00-05-018. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to R-20 for +/- .49 acres of TMS #197-00-05-018 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on December 13, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to R-20 +/- .49 acres of TMS #197-00-05-018 described above; 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on January 3, 2023, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 2 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to R-20 +/- .49 acres of 
TMS #197-00-05-018 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2023-001 
Page 3 of 3 

2647 Anderson Hwy 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2023-001 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading: January 3, 2023 
 
2nd Reading: January 17, 2023 
 
3rd Reading: February 7, 2023 
 
Public Hearing: January 3, 2023 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2
Anderson County Planning Commission

Staff Report
December 13, 2022

Applicant: Melanie Patterson

Current owner: LBB Investments LLC (Melanie S. Patterson)

Property location: 2647 Anderson Highway, Williamston

Precinct: Williamston MIll

Council district: 7

TMS#(s): 197-00-05-018

Acreage: +/- .49 acres

Current zoning: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)

Requested zoning: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)

The residential district is established as an area in which the
principal use of land is for single-family dwellings and for
related recreational, religious, and educational facilities
normally required to provide an orderly and attractive
residential area. The regulations for these districts are
intended to discourage any use which, because of its
characteristics, would interfere with the development of or
be detrimental to the quiet residential nature of the area
included in the districts.

Surrounding zoning: North: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)
South: R-A (Residential-Agriculture District)
East: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District)
West: Unzoned

Evaluation: This request is to rezone .49 acres from C-2 to R-20. The
applicant wishes to move the property line on the C-2
property over 125 feet in order to accommodate
construction of an accessory agriculture shelter on the
neighboring property.

Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification
actions have been completed, as follows:
- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent

to 142 property owners within 2,000’ of the subject
property.

- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on
subject property;

- November 23, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing
advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.



Page 2 of 2
Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the

rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their
recommendation at that time.

















Ordinance #2023-002 
Page 1 of 3 

110 Smith Motors Rd  

 
Ordinance #2023-002 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.76 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to R-MHP (Residential Manufactured Home Park District) on a parcel 
of land, identified as 110 Smith Motors Rd in the Bowling Green Precinct shown 
in Deed Book 14748 page 7. The parcel is further identified as TMS #173-00-
06-005. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to R-MHP for +/- 16.76 acres of TMS #173-00-06-005 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on December 13, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to R-MHP +/- 16.76 acres of TMS #173-00-06-005 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on January 3, 2023, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2023-002 
Page 2 of 3 

110 Smith Motors Rd  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to R-MHP +/- 16.76 acres 
of TMS #173-00-06-005 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2023-002 
Page 3 of 3 

110 Smith Motors Rd  
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2023-002 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading: January 3, 2023 
 
2nd Reading: January 17, 2023 
 
3rd Reading: February 7, 2023 
 
Public Hearing: January 3, 2023 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2
Anderson County Planning Commission

Staff Report
December 13, 2022

Applicant: Christopher Johnson

Current owner: Connie L Turner Et Al

Property location: 110 Smith Motors Rd, Belton

Precinct: Bowling Green

Council district: 7

TMS#(s): 173-00-06-005

Acreage: +/- 16.76 acres

Current zoning: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)

Requested zoning: R-MHP (Residential- Manufactured Home District)

The manufactured home park district is established to allow
manufactured home parks provided certain locational
criteria are met, and the request is approved by county
council. The requirements of this district are set forth to
ensure that manufactured home parks may coexist with
existing and future residential development. The following
criteria should be used in zoning property R-MHP:
A. Proposed site ensures adequate access to public street
systems and does not cause undue congestion or place
excessive traffic on local streets.
B. The proposed development should be located where
public facilities and services are either existing or planned.
C. Approval of the application should not result in an over
concentration of housing types that would alter the basic
character of the area.
D. The proposed development should be compatible with
adjoining and nearby properties.

Surrounding zoning: North: C-2 (Highway Commercial District) & R-20 (Single-
Family Residential District)
South: I-1 (Industrial District)
East: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)
West: C-2 (Highway Commercial District) & R-20 (Single-
Family Residential District)

Evaluation: This request is to rezone from C-2 to R-MHP. The applicant
wishes to establish an RV Park. The applicant’s basis for the
rezoning is the temporary use of the property for Rudy’s
Bluegrass which had RVs onsite during the festival. The
applicant plans to develop a permanent RV park with pads
that will have access to a pond and walking trails. Staff has
check historical aerials as well as building permits and have
established that the property has never been used as an RV
Park. The infrastructure for the RVs onsite are temporary



Page 2 of 2
power poles with no septic or sewer tie ins. Staff has
established that the RVs that were on the property were a
temporary accessory use to the property’s use as a
bluegrass festival.

Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification
actions have been completed, as follows:
- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent

to 100 property owners within 2,000’ of the subject
property.

- November 23, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on
subject property;

- November 23, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing
advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.

Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the
rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their
recommendation at that time.






















































	Agenda January 3, 2023
	Minutes CCM 111522
	Minutes CCM 120622
	7a Ordinance 2022-056
	8a Ordinance 2022-058 MCIP
	9a Ordinance 2023-001
	9b Ordinance 2023-002
	11 Subrecipient Agreement
	12 ATAX Committee Requests & Recommendations
	13a UNCF Appropriations Request



